ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COVM TTEE
Cct ober 24, 2007
10: 05 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda Green

Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski
Senat or Thonmas WAgoner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senat or Bettye Davis
Senat or Joe Thomas
Senator Hollis French

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 2001
"An Act relating to the production tax on oil and gas and to
conservation surcharges on oil; relating to the issuance of
advisory bulletins and the disclosure of certain information
relating to the production tax and the sharing between agencies
of certain information relating to the production tax and to oil
and gas or gas only |eases; anmending the State Personnel Act to
place in the exenpt service certain state oil and gas auditors
and their imredi ate supervisors; establishing an oil and gas tax
credit fund and authorizing paynent from that fund; providing
for retroactive application of certain statutory and regul atory
provisions relating to the production tax on oil and gas and
conservation surcharges on oil; making conform ng anendnents;
and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

Bl LL: SB2001

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- Oct ober 24, 2007



SHORT TITLE: O L & GAS TAX AMENDMENTS
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

10/ 18/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
10/ 18/ 07 (S) RES, JUD, FIN

10/ 19/ 07 (S) RES AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
10/ 19/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 19/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 20/ 07 (S) RES AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
10/ 20/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 20/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 21/ 07 (S) RES AT 1: 00 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
10/ 21/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 21/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 22/ 07 (S) RES AT 11:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
10/ 22/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 22/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 23/ 07 (S) RES AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
10/ 23/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

10/ 23/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

10/ 24/ 07 (S) RES AT 10: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

CLAI RE FI TZPATRI CK, Seni or Conmercial Vice President
BP Expl oration (Al aska)

Anchor age AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 2001.

M KE UTSLER, Senior Vice President for Geater Prudhoe Bay
BP Expl oration (Al aska)

Anchor age AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 2001.

KEVIN M TCHELL, Vice President of Finance and Adm nistration
ConocoPhi |l I'i ps Al aska

Anchor age AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 2001.

JI M TAYLOR, Vice President of Commercial Assets
ConocoPhi | I'i ps Al aska

Anchor age AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 2001.

BO DARRAH, Presi dent

Br ooks Range Petrol eum Conpany
Anchor age AK

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- Oct ober 24, 2007



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 2001.

MARK SHARP
Fai r banks AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 2001.

JERRY WALKER
Fai r banks AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 2001.

Rl CH SI EFERT
Fai r banks AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 2001.

TOM LAKCOSH
Anchor age AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 2001.

MERRI CK PEI RCE
Fai r banks AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 2001.

TOM MALONEY
Anchor age AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 2001.

PAUL KENDALL
Representing hinsel f
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 2001.

TONY TENGS
Juneau AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 2001.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGGA NS called the Senate Resources Standing
Committee neeting to order at 10:05:33 AM Present at the cal
to order were Senators Geen, Stevens, Wgoner, W el echowski,
and Chair Huggi ns.

SB2001-O L & GAS TAX AMENDMENTS

10: 06: 25 AM
CHAI R HUGGE NS announced SB 2001 to be up for consideration

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- Oct ober 24, 2007



CLAI RE FI TZPATRI CK, Commercial Senior Vice President for BP in
Al aska, introduced Mke Utsler, Senior Vice President for BP in
Prudhoe Bay.

She said that the debate is about Alaska s economc future;
production is declining and the state and BP have a common
objective in trying to mnimze that. BP wants to focus the
conversation on Alaska' s resources and associated costs and
geography. BP supports the net tax basis although the rate is
too high; the principle behind the tax was to encourage
investment and get nore barrels into the pipeline. BP nakes
investnments for the short, medium and long terns; it won't say
no to investnent because of an increase in taxes or walk out on
the business. Utimately it is a decision for the state to nake
about tax policy, and whether it is increasing or decreasing the
desired effect; tax policy changes the scale and pace of an
activity.

10: 10: 06 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked for clarification of M. Fizpatrick’s
position within BP.

VB. FI TZZPATRICK replied that she |ooks after financial
reporting, planning, taxes, supply chains, and other financia
areas; her positionis simlar to that of a CFO

10: 11: 44 AM

She said that BP's key nessage is that production is the major
factor in determning state revenue for the future years, and
the goal is to stem the decline. Changes in production inpact
royalties, which can be nore inportant than taxes. A fiscal
policy dependent on price is not the best approach. Investnent
in development is key to stemmng the decline. BP is concerned
about fiscal stability because three tax changes in three years
doesn't seem st abl e.

10: 13: 04 AM
SENATOR WAGONER asked Ms. Fitzpatrick to list the changes.

M5. FITZPATRICK said the first was the Economic Limt Factor
(ELF) aggregation, the objective of which was to increase
revenue to the state. The PPT change cane second and the
proposed PPT change woul d be the third.

SENATOR WAGONER responded that the ELF aggregation was not a
change in tax structure, but a change in adm nistrative policy.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- Oct ober 24, 2007



MS. FI TZPATRICK replied that that was his perspective.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked when the |ast change was before those
bei ng di scussed.

10: 15: 03 AM
M5. FITZPATRICK replied there had been a period of stability
previous to that and offered to give nore detail |ater.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he heard 1989 nentioned as the |ast
year in which a change was nmade and only one change since 1989
seened pretty stable to him

M5. FI TZPATRI CK said she bases current investment decisions on
current news.

10: 16: 14 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if BP has a defined pool of nobney it
uses to invest around the world or if the anpunts invested are
flexible.

M5. FITZPATRICK replied BP doesn't have an infinite pot of
nmoney. Its financial group decides what investnent franmework is
appropriate for the entire conpany. It considers debt rates
because the <conpany is severely inpacted by prices. The
i nvestment comunity expects to see prudence. BP nmde a
strategic decision to invest in Libya, but that didn't take
noney away from other |ocations. Al aska gets noney by presenting
the London office with a robust business plan; a good plan wll
mean nore noney over tine.

10: 18: 18 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he was trying to figure out if Al aska
is in conpetition with other countries or if any profitable
project would be devel oped. His concern was that a higher profit
margin el sewhere would nean respectively less-profitable
proj ects woul dn’t be devel oped.

M5. FI TZPATRI CK responded that she would attenpt to answer that
guestion later in the neeting.

CHAI RVAN HUGE NS remarked that Senators MQiire, Stedman
Hof f man, and Thomas were present.

10: 20: 40 AM
MS. FITZPATRICK said that there are resources that haven't been
di scovered in Al aska, but the bulk of opportunity wthin Al aska

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- Oct ober 24, 2007



is within its known resources. BP is working on how to actually
extract them economically. The debate should be around creating
the environnent that basically allows themto be accessed.

10: 21: 19 AM

She then referenced a slide showi ng how production has declined
in recent years, as well as the related investnent nunbers; BP
invested in 100 wells on the North Slope in 2007 and hopes to
invest in 100 nore in the next year.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if those wells are exploratory in nature.

M5. FITZPATRICK replied that BP does not use true exploratory
wel | s.

SENATOR WAGONER asked how many wells deal with heavy and viscous
oil.

M5. FITZPATRICK replied BP isn’'t currently producing the
t hi ckest heavy oil; it has only one such pilot well.

10: 24: 15 AM

M KE UTSLER, Senior Vice President for BP Exploration in Prudhoe
Bay, said a percentage of BP's program is geared towards
devel opi ng viscous oil in Prudhoe Bay.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how t he unknown is defi ned.

VB. FI TZPATRI CK replied t hat she exam nes producti on
projections; 70 percent of production in comng years wll cone
from the Prudhoe and Kuparuk fields, which wll include the
viscous and the heavy oils. The exploratory opportunities are
unknown by nature; the response to that question wll thus
change over tine.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if she was including the |and becom ng
exposed through gl obal warm ng in her estinates.

M5. FITZPATRICK replied that she does not take her cal cul ations
to extrenes.

10: 28: 24 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if her figures were in 2006 dollars
or actual dollars per year

M5. FITZPATRICK replied that the history of spending was in
actual dollars spent.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- Oct ober 24, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the rate of decline will increase
or decrease with the Alaska' s Cear and Equitable Share plan
(ACES). He added that there were many years of |ow production
taxes, and when the tax increased so did the production.

M5. FI TZPATRI CK said she couldn't predict what the decline would
be if the current bill was passed. The econom c outcone is one
of the factors she takes into consideration, and overall it's a
hugely conplicated bal ancing act, and all decisions aren't nade
at the same price. Increasing taxes will decrease econonics and
the decline curve will probably become steeper, she opined, but
t hen added that technol ogy has changed so BP can do nore and now
prices have gone up

10: 31: 43 AM

SENATOR WAGONER said he doesn't want to have to recoup revenue
in hindsight and asked how the state would keep that situation
from happeni ng agai n.

M5. FITZPATRICK said the current PPT was designed to stinulate
i nvestment and her personal view is that BP' s investnent has
i ncreased. The oil industry doesn't revolve on annual cycles; so
the effect of investnents doesn’'t show i medi ately.

10: 33: 19 AM
SENATOR WAGONER asked what percentage of the investnent increase
is the result of inflation costs.

M5. FI TZPATRICK replied that she woul d address that issue |ater.
She said that 800 wells have been drilled in Prudhoe Bay in the
|ast 10 years. Drilling a well now is different than 10 years
ago; to get the same production rate a conpany nust drill nore
wells in the future.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if BP alone drilled 800 well s.

M5. FI TZPATRICK replied that was the total nunber drilled by all
i nvestors in the bay.

10: 35: 41 AM
CHAIR HUGGE NS asked for an explanation of what water in the
wel | s means.

MS. FI TZPATRICK replied that she would cover that issue later in
her presentation if that was alright. She then showed another
slide regarding how declining production decreases state

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- Oct ober 24, 2007



revenues. She stated that 6 percent is the current decline; the
DOR is forecasting 1 percent over 10 years and 3 percent over 20
years.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked for how she got the $25 billion and
$70 billion figures.

M5. FI TZPATRI CK expl ai ned how those nunbers were estimates based
on what the adm nistration had presented.

10: 38: 18 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how accurate the nunbers were.

M5. FITZPATRICK replied that she hasn't had the opportunity to
fully scrutinize them

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if she could create a fiscal nopde
for the | egislature.

MS. FI TZPATRICK said she would be happy to do so; the nodel is
not conpli cat ed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said perhaps the Departnment of Revenue
(DOR) should do so.

MS. FI TZPATRICK said she is trying to work with the DOR

10: 40: 42 AM

MR. UTSLER explained that Prudhoe Bay is still the |argest
producing field in North America. BP believes Prudhoe Bay has
anot her 50 years of possible production and it is at the heart
of that future. He then described the area.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked himto detail the nunber of wells and
their success rates.

MR. UTSLER replied that the 2,500 wells include dry holes;
currently 1,200 of them are acti ve.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if 50 percent is a high success rate.

MR. UTSLER replied no; an 80 percent success rate is what BP
expects. Historically, that is the range in Prudhoe Bay.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how that conpares to success rates in
ot her parts of the world.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- Oct ober 24, 2007



MR. UTSLER replied that 80 percent is consistent around the
wor | d.

10: 47: 30 AM
SENATOR MCQUI RE asked if he has worked in tar sands.

MR. UTSLER replied no, but he has studied them

SENATOR MCGUI RE said she and Senator Wagoner were in such an
area, and the technology just wasn't there. The Calgary heavy
oil industry is now taking off. She asked if that area could be
conpared to Prudhoe Bay.

MR. UTSLER replied that BP believes in an exciting heavy oil
future for Al aska, but there are technical and fisca
chal l enges. He said he would talk about the ability to |everage
the Al berta technol ogi es, and enphasi zed that a robust supply of
light oil is needed to develop heavy oil; the latter can't be
devel oped i ndependently.

10: 51: 03 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said he wanted to confirm the specul ation that
nmovi ng west from Prudhoe Bay would lead to finding nore gas and
| ess oil.

MR. UTSLER replied that BP believes that the devel opnment of the
hydrocarbon basin of the North Slope basin suggests that in
nmovi ng westward, the probability of finding oil with associated
gas is greater. Because of the fundanmental nature of the
depositional environment, BP would expect a nore gas-rich
terrain, probably including associated |iquids.

10: 53: 00 AM

SENATOR WAGONER noted that when he was at an oil and gas
synposium in Anchorage, BP made a presentation on viscous and
heavy oil, which would be useful to the conmttee.

MR. UTSLER replied that he would be sharing some of that
information with them and a group was being put together to
address the issue of heavy oil.

10: 54: 38 AM

He then talked about a slide showing the curnulative recovery
since 1977 with changes in technology noted along the way.
Originally Prudhoe Bay was expected to be a 25-year oil field,
he said, and currently it may produce for a total of 80 years

Such a field requires trenendous investnents and technol ogica

SENATE RES COW TTEE -9- Oct ober 24, 2007



devel opments. Over tinme, $19 billion in capital has been spent
to devel op the greater bay, not including operating costs.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if that nunber included all partners’
i nvest ments.

MR. UTSLER replied that it did.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what the total profit has been over
t he Prudhoe Bay’ s devel opnent peri od.

MR. UTSLER replied that he didn't have an answer; the field has
been profitable in some years, but not others. Overall it is
profitable and continues to justify increasing investnent.

11: 01: 59 AM

He then referenced water production in the drilling process, and
expl ai ned that water and gas nust be separated and re-injected
to maintain pressure. Even though oil production is declining
the anmount of fluids is actually increasing; but, nmuch of it has
no econom c value and disposal is costly. However, it allows BP
to continue to produce oil for a longer period of tine.

He said that Prudhoe Bay has the largest gas plant conplex in
the world and managing it has many chal | enges.

11: 04: 07 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how nany barrels of oil have been
produced from Prudhoe Bay.

MR. UTSLER replied that 11.5 billion barrels have been produced.
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the cost was $1.55 per barrel

MR. UTSLER replied that would be the capital costs; operating
costs would add to that. He said he would return to that topic
later in the presentation.

11: 05: 32 AM

He referenced another slide to show the well bores that have
been drilled, and how the field is in an anticline. He then
expl ai ned the geography of the reservoirs, and how the oil is
recovered fromthem

11: 07: 30 AM
SENATOR WAGONER asked at what pressure reduction the gas cap
| oses efficacy.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- Oct ober 24, 2007



MR. UTSLER replied that the issue is conplex; overall, when
there is no nore gas in the oil, the oil becones harder to lift.
That situation would require a new sort of mechanism for
renoving the oil fromthe ground.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if the existence of a gas line would
inhibit oil extraction.

MR. UTSLER replied that BP is working with the Alaska Gl and
Gas Comm ssion (AOGC) to determne the optimal |evel of gas off-

take; regardless, there will be an inpact to production decline
of oil reservoirs. That can be offset sonmewhat by water, but it
is only partially effective. The oil industry and the state are

wor ki ng together to figure out that issue.
CHAIR HUGEA NS commented that the answer is always dynam c.
MR UTSLER agr eed.

CHAIR HUGE NS asked if CO2 could be injected as a substitute.

11:11: 39 AM

MR. UTSLER replied that CO2 flooding could be used to enhance
oil recovery from sonme reservoirs. The disadvantage is that
there will be an additional cost to renove the CQ2.

11:12: 36 AM

He explained that only 30 wells re-inject gas back into the gas
cap; part of the reservoir is produced wth gravity drai nage. He
then expl ained the nechanisns of oil extraction and how water
fl oodi ng hel ps that.

11: 14: 04 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWMBKI asked how M. U sler defined a successful
return rate.

VR. UTSLER replied that success neans finding projected
hydrocarbons and bringing themto the surface; technical success
doesn’t necessarily nean econonm ¢ success. BP | ooks at the well

nodeling and the costs to drill and develop versus the volune
the well wll recover; that results in an economc life
scenari o.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for an average barrel nunber.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- Oct ober 24, 2007



MS. FI TZPATRI CK responded that sonetimes assessnents are done on
a single-well basis, but often assessnents have to be done on a
program basis to keep the <calculations from becomng too
unwi el dy.

11:16: 29 AM
MR. UTSLER expl ained that BP has drilled 70 wells in Prudhoe Bay
in 2007 on the basis of a program expectati on.

11:17: 04 AM
CHAI RVAN HUGGE NS call ed an at - ease due to t echni ca
difficulties.

11: 26: 18 AM
CHAIR HUGE NS cal |l ed the neeting back to order

MR, UTSLER said even a field with 30 years of history presents
chal I enges i n noving forward.

11:28: 13 AM

He then referenced a slide regarding water injection projects
and pressure history. Pressure began to flatten over a recent
period and now BP is looking at different, nore specific ways of
injection. The longer the pressure profile can remain flattened
the better the recovery. BP has had to initiate seawater
injection, putting 900,000 barrels of filtered, <cleaned and

chemcally treated seawater into the reservoirs. Seawater
injection was started in 1985. As the field has evolved, water
produced from drilling wasn't enough and BP brought back

seawat er injection.

11: 32: 29 AM

He said that BP and the state are dealing with a comon eneny,
in terns of declining production. There is a need to continue to
find ways of recovering oil to keep the industry going; fields
need continued investnent. Just a 1 percent inprovenent neans
250 million barrels of oil over the next 50 years.

11: 34: 22 AM

CHAIR HUGA NS conmented that BP is now handling as nmuch water as
oil and that salt water is now being used. He added that the
t hat technol ogy has extended the Iife of the field significantly
and the challenge is that they are nuch nore significant than
peopl e reali ze.

SENATOR WAGONER asked for the dollar anobunt that BP budgets per
well in the field.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- Oct ober 24, 2007



MR. UTSLER replied that BP uses a range of different types of
wells, and said he would explain those different wells and their
cost structures later in the presentation.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if BP had expected a recovery rate of 45
percent but is currently operating at 57 percent.

MR. UTSLER agreed. The original estimates pointed to a 45
percent rate.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if 1 percent equal 250 million barrels.
MR. UTSLER replied yes.
SENATOR STEVENS asked what inportant discoveries they cane from

MR. UTSLER replied for exanple that the Liberty field BP is
proposing to develop is a 100-mllion barrel resource. That was
di scovered years ago and it’'s going to take five to seven years
to develop. It would get 30,000 to 40,000 barrels of production
for the 100 mlIlion barrels.

11: 39: 50 AM

He then referenced another slide and discussed how BP is working
for the future; it is trying to develop a nechanism that allows
water to nove into restricted areas, and is |ooking at injecting
polynmers that solidify with rising tenperature and swell to form
a plug for the water. It is also experimenting with different
techniques in three particular wells, and mght recover 1.8
mllion barrels nore.

He then explained another nechanism that involves injecting
mscible gas to wells, which picks up nolecules of oil as it
noves t hrough the water.

11:47: 07 AM
SENATOR GREEN asked how they know for sure that the water is
going to the desired pipe.

MR. UTSLER replied that in a mscible sense on the diagram she
woul d see a fine surface of oil [irreducible oils] left as water
is nmoved through. As the gas cones through, as opposed to water,
it is attracted to the surface of oil. It actually literally
strips off a few nore drops. That nechanism is costly and
inefficient in the sense that it doesn't bring large barrels

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- Oct ober 24, 2007



with it, but it brings nore. So, one can take irreducible oi
saturations of 19 — 20 percent down to 16 or 17 percent.

SENATOR CGREEN asked if BP devel oped the pol yner procedure.

MR. UTSLER replied that it was developed by the industry and
several different conpanies were testing it.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if the conpanies could recover both the
pol ymer and the m sci bl e gas.

MR. UTSLER replied that the conpany doesn’t recover the polyner;
it wants it to stay in the ground. In theory the mscible gas is
stripped during use and it has to be re-enriched before re-
injection into the ground. BP constantly has to use existing
product to be able to return the mscible gas to the reservoir.

11:51: 40 AM
He enphasized that there is a continuing challenge against the
backdrop of a continually declining reservoir; this challenge is
how to encourage the type of investnent it will take to get the
producti on.

11: 52: 46 AM
MR. UTSLER then referenced a slide showi ng underlying decline
and how that wll continue if new investnents are not nnde.

Contributions from new wells have greatly increased production
he said. The oil production would be half of what it is today if
BP had stopped drilling in 2003. Keeping the decline in check is
very costly.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if oil would stop flowing in six years if
there was no technol ogi cal advancenent, and commented that that
seened unlikely to him

MR. UTSLER replied that the field would not disappear wthin
that period of tine, but nmaintaining a set |evel of production
begs the question of when that production would becone
unecononmni C.

11:57: 52 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked for clarification on the investnent
chart before the committee.

MR. UTSLER replied in clarifying BP' s investnent figures. He
expl ai ned that each year the problem of declining production
WOr sens.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- Oct ober 24, 2007



12: 00: 20 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked himto explain an el enment of the graph

MR. UTSLER said that the 400 wells drilled by 2007 have
contributed 50 percent of the total production stream

CHAIR HUGA NS stated that Al askans need to understand that new
production wthin the legacy fields needs to continue and
i nvestnent i s needed.

MR. UTSLER agreed and added that activity in the |egacy fields
needs to be not only nmintained, but accelerated. Their capita
spending in greater Prudhoe Bay over the past four years has
increased from $400 mllion per year to next year’s proposed $1
billion. They are spending nore noney to mtigate that decline.

CHAIR HUGA NS said that the consequences of m sunderstanding the
i nportance of the |egacy fields could be dramatic.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the nunmbers on the chart were in
real dollars or discounted.

MR. UTSLER answered that the nunbers were neant to be equally
weighted. It is nmeant to denonstrate $250 million spent in 2002
versus $250 million spent in 2007 has resulted in the decline.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how much the dollar value declined
bet ween 2002 and 2007.

M5. FI TZPATRICK said that she would be happy to get back to him
wi th that nunber.

12: 05: 22 PM
SENATOR MCCGUI RE asked for an explanation of a dip in exploration
in July 2006

MR. UTSLER explained that the dip was a result of a partial
shut down of Prudhoe Bay due to an oil | eak.

12: 06: 20 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN asked if it isn't normal for the nmjor producers
to nove out and let snaller conpanies enter the field in the
case of oil production decline.

MR. UTSLER replied that the question was a conplex one;
normally, a smaller operator couldn't afford to pay to manage

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- Oct ober 24, 2007



the infrastructure on a field |like Prudhoe Bay. It wll likely
remain in the hands of the larger conpanies, and snaller
i ndependents will play off that infrastructure.

CHAI R HUGA NS announced a recess at 12:10:00 PM and called the
nmeeting back to order at 1:15:09 PM

MR. UTSLER recapped his technical review of the legacy fields
and the challenges of finding the resource and carrying it into
t he future.

1:16: 09 PM

He referenced a slide regarding seismc inmaging and directiona
drilling enabling devel opnent, and explained how BP has
developed a way to drill wvertically and then in another

direction. This nethod has allowed BP to unlock snmaller and
smal ler resources. He explained that up to five |ateral bores
can be drilled using one vertical well.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if BP could laterally drill from existing
wel | s.

MR. UTSLER replied that it could, by using coil drilling. BP
could drill out about 8,000 feet today and drill wthin three
feet of a target. He then talked about the use of injection
wells and the high costs of those, and how they are nopst
effective in producing the viscous oil in the western region of
Prudhoe Bay.

1:22: 18 PM

He explained that viscous oil is lighter than heavy oil, which
is the consistency of peanut butter. Viscous oil can be pushed
with water, but heavy oil cannot. The biggest challenge in
devel opi ng viscous oil is the needed technol ogy.

1:24: 44 PM

CHAIR HUGE NS asked about the cost differential in terms of
processing different types of oil.

MR. UTSLER replied that viscous oil neans another $15 mllion in
facilities costs.

CHAIR HUGGA NS comrented that the entire business of getting
viscous oil to market is conplicated.

MR. UTSLER gave an exanple of how viscous oil wells are nore
expensive to drill and that it couldn't be done 10 years ago. If

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- Oct ober 24, 2007



you were to drill five vertical wells to get to five zones, each

well is on an average of $5 mllion to $6 mllion — or about $25
mllion to $30 mllion. Using the new technology, they could
drill one well bore for $13 mllion to $15 million. Ofsetting
that, though, they would have to drill three additional injector
wells at a cost of about $5 nmillion each. The facilities to
handle the viscous oil including pipe, separation and heat

necessary to handle viscous oil wells would cost another $15
mllion plus. Collectively it’s a higher cost and the only way
to devel op viscous oil at scale currently is to use this type of

technology. It takes two tinmes as long to drill as conventiona
wel l's, around 60 days. So they can only reasonably drill five to
six a year. Only three rigs currently on the North Slope can
drill this kind of well. This is how greater Prudhoe Bay wl|I

continue to be devel oped.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked, “Wen you drill laterally, is that in your
tabul ation as well or is it just a lateral drill?”

MR. UTSLER explained that viscous oil is predomnantly |ocated
in the legacy fields in between and on the western plains of
Prudhoe Bay. Since 2000 these technol ogi es have hel ped four new
reservoirs to start producing. He said that BP is working as
operator with its working interest owners to devel op the viscous
oil potential. By the end of this year or the beginning of next

year they wll have a $2.1 billion proposal to develop new
facilities at the surface to deal with the viscous oil, the
devel opnent and drilling of new viscous wells and all the
facilities necessary to support that. This wll unlock 250
mllion plus or mnus barrels of new oil.

1: 30: 42 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE commented that Al askans have a sense that
there's no hope for the future of the oil fields, and people say
that BP is not investing in Al aska. Hearing talk about new
devel opments is exciting and hopefully it will mnmake people nore
optimstic.

M5. FI TZPATRI CK said sone of BP's investnents aren't necessarily
visible, but they are there regardless and there is a future for
oil in Al aska.

MR. UTSLER added that BP believes in the 50-year future of
Al askan oil production, and is adding new enployees all the tine
to plan for tonorrow and the future. It has a lot of pride in
the oil field work as well as much awareness and sensitivity to
t he envi ronnent.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- Oct ober 24, 2007



SENATOR WAGONER remarked that the sensitivity is due to a zero-
tolerance policy, and the industry has not always been so
sensitive.

1: 34: 28 PM

MR. UTSLER went on to describe the tremendous potential of heavy
oi | production in Al aska, and showed slides about the history of
such producti on.

1: 36: 23 PM

He explained that heavy oil isn't as valuable as light oil in
the marketplace; the differential is up to $l1l4/barrel. Most
refineries are not designed to process the heavy oils and would
need retooling, so the oil is nore costly to refine for use in
t he market pl ace as wel | .

1:38: 09 PM

SENATOR WAGONER said it would seem nore appropriate to try a
prelimnary process in the field; transportation of heavy oil
will eat into the profit.

MR. UTSLER said it is not economically feasible. It will have to
be mxed with lighter oils to be thin enough to nove through
TAPS. Cetting it out of the reservoir has to be figured out
first. Each step requires devel opnment of expensive technol ogies.

1:40: 47 PM
MR. UTSLER said the nmajority of that resource base sits in the
| egacy fields. Injecting diesel, solvents, and steam stinul ates
pr oducti on.

SENATOR WAGONER asked how deeply buried the heavy oil is.

MR. UTSLER replied that it is between 1500 and 3000 feet bel ow
the surface, below the permafrost. The heavy oil wll require
many nore wells and a way to mix the heavy oil with the |ight
oil at roughly a one to one ratio to nove through the Trans-
Al aska Pi pel i ne System ( TAPS)

1:43:58 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how much the increased capital costs
for heavy oil would be.

MR. UTSLER replied he couldn’'t estimate that nunber at this
stage in the process; BP is still developing its first well.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- Oct ober 24, 2007



M5. FITZPATRICK added that the first nodels showed that the
well's weren’t economc, and the nunbers are not fully understood
yet.

1:45: 21 PM
SENATOR WAGONER asked if the liquids from a potential natura
gas pipeline could be used to help drill heavy oil.

MR. UTSLER replied that it would be an econom c decision; there
woul dn’t be sufficient natural gas liquids distilled to create
the dilutants needed for the heavy oil.

1:47: 35 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS comented that Senator French had joined the
comittee.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said he wants to see BP nove forward to
profitability and he urged themto get together with the DOR and
come up with a schene.

M5. FI TZPATRICK said BP has been working with the DOR but they
are still working out the details of the plan.

MR. UTSLER said that so far, BP has drilled one heavy oil well;

it is called the CHOPS (Cold Heavy G| Production) well. It
produces sand along with the oil, which creates flow paths and
could increase the production rate. This is still in the

devel opnment phase.

1:50: 33 PM
MR, UTSLER said that, using the state's data, drilling a heavy
oil well costs $16/barrel.

SENATOR WAGONER asked why he used the state's data, because BP' s
data is nore accurate.

M5. FITZPATRICK replied that BP wanted to keep the cal cul ations
sinple, and the state’s data | ooks reasonable to BP although the
conpany does anticipate that costs wll be going up.

1:51: 57 PM

MR. UTSLER explained the higher operating costs in Al aska
conpared to the average U.S. cost structure which would
di sadvant age the product’s profitability.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the production tax was included in
the $16-dollar figure quoted.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- Oct ober 24, 2007



M5. FI TZPATRI CK replied yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how nmuch of the Alyeska pipeline BP
owns.

M5. FITZPATRICK replied that the conmpany owns about one-third
BP views profitability froman upstream perspecti ve.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked how BP chooses one profitable project
over anot her.

M5. FI TZPATRICK replied that investnment decisions aimto bal ance
their global portfolio. The factors of cost, fiscal position,
geological and technical risks, and the existence of other
opportunities are weighed. There is no single criterion.

MR. UTSLER added that BP's is not an unlimted investnment pool
The conpany starts with a Ilist and works through it. Each year a
whole new set of projects conmes forward; the investnment 1is
i ncrement al .

CHAIR HUGA NS said that there is not one single tenplate for al
si tuati ons.

1:58: 58 PM
M5. FITZPATRICK said the quality of the resource is known. The
engi neering needs will continue to be difficult and BP has not

yet proved it can get the heavy oil

2:00: 44 PM
She then referenced the blue line on a slide indicating oil
production decline and how the future of oil production is

critically dependent on existing large fields and additional
investnments. She said the blue line didn't adequately show the

difference between light and heavy oil, but explained that the
IRS attenpted to differentiate the two with the windfall profit
tax and abandoned doing it, because they couldn’'t do it

successfully. Both Norway and the UK have had many years of
conversations trying to establish how it could be done, but
hadn’t managed it yet. The interdependence of heavy oil and
light oil 1is conplicated. She stated, “Speaking from ny own
perspective, there are many days | know sitting in the office
that | wish it could be differentiated nore easily sinply for ne
in ternms of managi ng performance. It’s not possible.”

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- Oct ober 24, 2007



M5. FITZPATRICK went to the nustard-yellow line indicating
additional investnments in existing fields and commented that BP
estimates about half of that is comng from heavy oil and the
other half from light oil. That was the basis of some of her
arithnetic for the $25 billion versus $70 billion estimte. She
reiterated that new technology is key, but there is no guarantee
that that will deliver and new investnment is needed to keep even
the low estimate nunber and certainly to nove it above that
nunmber. O the two new devel opnents, they hope Pioneer will cone
on next year with Oooguruk and that they can progress on the
Liberty field in the next year or twd. However, she pointed out
that those were on federal |ands as opposed to state |ands; so
they wouldn’t be subject to PPT — but she thought the DNR used
those nunbers in its long-termforecasts.

She reiterated two key issues - the interdependence of |ight and
heavy oil and the facilities and infrastructure. She expl ained
that the North Slope was built with a 25 to 30-year life in mnd
and now BP is looking at the next 50 and hopefully many years
beyond that. So it is appropriate to consider whether the
infrastructure is the right one for the next 50 years or if
anot her would be nore efficient and fit for the purpose of the
up and coning mxed hydrocarbon streanms. This investnment would
be substantial and wouldn’'t cone through in ternms of nore
barrels, but not having it could inpact the cost structure of
the barrels that are actually getting produced.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI commented that this chart she is
referencing goes out only 19 nore years, but she said that BP is
planning to be here for 50 years. He asked if she had nodeling
sonmewhere that shows BP can sustain production for 50 nore
years.

M5. FI TZPATRICK replied that the chart canme fromthe DOR and she
does have a chart and schematic with a |ot of assunptions in it
t hat goes out 50 years. Al of its facilities on the North Sl ope
have it on the wall.

2:05:37 PM
She then showed another slide regarding the fields from which
the oil wll be produced and how they would affect state

revenue. She pointed out that 70 percent of the barrels wll
corme from Prudhoe and Kupar uk.

She went back to the question of how BP nmakes its investnent

deci sions. She said they use a mxture of things, but no nagic
tenplate; clearly costs are a part of it. The global steel

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- Oct ober 24, 2007



shortage will inpact the cost structure; there is also a finite
supply of rigs on the North Slope. If BP wants to increase its
rig count, it would be in direct conpetition with the other
producers. |If they get another one up there, it would need a
significant revanp to fit the purpose or build new ones. Those
di scussions would happen in today’'s supply environment. So, if
she wants those things, the market is conpetitive and the prices
are going up

2:07:24 PM
SENATOR MCCGUI RE asked about the degree to which stability of the
political environment inpacts BP s deci sions.

M5. FI TZPATRI CK responded that political environnent does i npact
decisions in terns of post-tax cash flow and fiscal policy.

SENATOR MCGQUI RE said that people in the public and the capitol
want to negotiate what the profits will be.

M5. FI TZPATRI CK said she is well aware of that fact.

SENATOR MCGUIRE said that people are also thinking about the
possibility of another conpany doing the sane business.

2:12: 32 PM
SENATOR WAGONER commented that the replacenent of BP' s pipeline
was estimted at $255 mllion and asked if a nore recent

estimte was avail abl e.

MR. UTSLER replied that the pipe has been ordered and woul d be
replaced in the upcomng winter season, at around the sanme cost
as originally proposed. However, there are inflationary costs
associ ated with the manpower needed.

MS. FI TZPATRI CK thanked Senator Wagoner for his question, and
commented that all costs don't increase at the sane rate at the
sanme tinme. She added that BP will continue to devel op, but there
is a question of scale and pace; attracting investnment is key.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he planned to |look at the state's data
on the issue, and since the state and BP are partners, he would
like to see the conpany sit down with adm nistration

M5. FI TZPATRI CK agreed, and she said she would like the DOR to

share its nodels with her. A nunber of things in the proposed
bill concern BP, and any sort of changes nmade shoul d be assessed

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- Oct ober 24, 2007



as to whether they would increase or decrease the risk in
nmeeti ng objectives.

2:21:46 PM
SENATOR MCGUI RE asked if there had been any discussion about
whet her BP woul d prefer to address the question of tax rates now
or in 2011.

M5. FITZPATRICK replied that from her perspective, from what
t hey understood the purpose of PPT to be in terns of increasing
investnment, she hadn’t had any indication that is not vyet
wor ki ng. So she thought it was too early to say; she will design
a business plan around whatever the law is. The current law is
PPT and it has a review date on 2011; she will respect that |aw

SENATOR MCGUI RE said she didn't disagree and that the conmttee
will focus on the practicalities of the issue. However, there is
an overarching political dilenma regarding the way in which
previ ous decisions were made, and the conmttee needs to find a
way to encourage the public trust. It is a reality and it cannot
be changed. She said it is in BP's best interest to encourage
this trust as well.

SENATOR GREEN said that there is nothing to keep the |egislature
from addressing the tax issue every year.

2:25:56 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS said that the nunbers are inportant to the issue,
and the people that rely on BP for business are an inportant
conponent of the issue; he appreciates seeing the data about
t hose people from BP

SENATOR GREEN noted an upcom ng neeting pertinent to the issue.

MS. FI TZPATRI CK quoted some data regarding the nunber of |obs
tied to the oil industry in Al aska.

2:29:47 PM

SENATOR WAGONER t hanked the presenters, and asked if Bill Allen
and Rick Smth were representing BP when they were | obbying.

M5. FI TZPATRI CK responded that BP is not under investigation.

CHAIR HUGEG NS called an at-ease at 2:32:05 PM and called the
nmeeting back to order at 2:43:33 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 23- Oct ober 24, 2007



KEVIN M TCHELL, Vice President of Finance and Adm nistration for
ConocoPhillips (CP) Alaska, said that CP is Al aska s |argest
producer and |easeholder, and a major explorer and industry
comunity supporter

2:46: 03 PM

He said that industry and the state should be in partnership; it
is too early to determne whether the PPT is doing what it was
expected to do, and thus too early to make any changes. An
increase in taxes will mean the industry will make a claimthat
investnment will be inhibited.

He said that his presentation would show how an increased PPT
woul d inpact investnents; that hadn’'t been done in previous
testinmony. He then showed a chart for the 2007 fiscal year and
the projections from when the Economc Limt Factor (ELF) system
was in place. He explained that the PPT is delivering higher
revenues than expected, and that prices of oil have been higher
as well. However those prices have been offset by higher costs.
Prices, production and costs have all differed from predictions,
but such variances are a part of business.

2:50: 26 PM

He explained that actual results always differ from the budget
because of prices, volunmes and costs. It is difficult to budget
with run-up in prices and the inflation rates of goods and
services; it’s inportant to think about the bigger picture of
revenue shaping up to expectations. PPT contains a safeguard for
the state of a 10 percent mininmum gross tax on the |egacy
fields. This nakes the tax very regressive by increasing it when
industry is suffering the nost and when prices decline. The 10
percent floor can be triggered by Ilower prices or higher
i nvest ments.

2:53: 15 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked if that conversation had been held with the
adm ni strati on.

2:53:55 PM

MR. M TCHELL replied that the adm nistration does understand the
argunent. He then showed a chart explaining how the tax floor is
cal cul ated, and gave an exanple. He expl ained how the additiona
investnment in the exanple did not attract any incentive.

SENATOR WAGONER said that the credit is still there, but they
weren't able to use it all.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 24- Oct ober 24, 2007



MR MTCHELL replied that was correct, but depending on the
spend profile over a period of years; they m ght not ever get to
use it.

CHAI R HUGE NS suggested, “It’s a disincentive.”

2:57:55 PM

MR. M TCHELL agreed and showed the next page which was nore |ike
reality. He scoped out what a Kuparuk budget mght |ook Iike
using DOR assunptions for volunes, prices, operating expenses,
and capital expenses. It indicated the net tax to the state

woul d be $408 million. Investnments are not getting the benefit
of the credits and features neant to incentivize. He said that
the reality is that the tax wll have the sanme inpact in a

hi gher investnment climate.

JIM  TAYLOR, Vi ce Pr esi dent of Conmmer ci al Asset s for
ConocoPhillips (CP), said that CP participates on all |evels of
production and exploration in Al aska. He showed an excerpt of
the DOR s projection for the industry, and said that since 1999
CPs exploration wells have led to new fields and satellites
with a mnimal footprint, yielding 6,000 barrels a day.

3:05: 34 PM
SENATOR WAGONER asked if certain fields on the diagram were ones
t hat had been di scovered but not put into production yet.

MR. TAYLOR said that he was not sure; the point is that CP wants
to see those fields explored. He then explained different
el ements of the diagram and tal ked about which fields oil wll
conme fromin the next decade; investnents need to be nmade in the
| egacy fields.

3:08: 06 PM

He said that there’s a lot of challenge in future opportunities
and a | ot of needed technol ogi cal advances. The viscous oil is a
| arge resource base and unlocking its potential is a mjor
f ocus.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked about CP's progress in technol ogy for
produci ng vi scous oil.

3:09: 33 PM

MR. TAYLOR replied that he has spent tine in Canada and there
are a lot of emerging technologies there; it’s a matter of using
them appropriately and having a good econom c scenario. Al aska
has taken sone steps towards neeting this challenge. What nakes

SENATE RES COW TTEE -25- Oct ober 24, 2007



the recovery of viscous oil so challenging is that the costs are
hi gher from the start, and the production profile starts out
lower and remains flatter over tine. The Century project in
Canada epitom zes the shallowest of heavy oils; such deposit
projects have the advantage of having the infrastructure built
already and by having to take small steps along the way.
However, as oil prices increase, so do opportunities.

3:12: 07 PM

He then tal ked about the chall enges associated with getting the
heavy oil out of the ground, and how it has a |ot of associated
sand production. He said anything they do that would affect the
economcs for marginal fields can delay or defer investnent
there or cause it to becone uneconomc. These are rea
situations they are dealing with today.

SENATOR WAGONER asked what CP will do with the sand.

MR. TAYLOR said there is a plant for disposing of byproducts of
production, which are re-injected in simlar zones from which
t hey cane.

3:14: 45 PM

He said a sizable oil target remains in the |egacy assets and
that price and the advances in technology have presented this
i nvestment opportunity to the industry. He showed them exanpl es
of the West Sak wells that have been conpleted in the Kuparuk
area. He pointed out that a single well bore has three different
wel | bores that penetrate a variety of stacked sands. The |ength
fromthe original well bore to the final length of the well can
range anywhere from a mle to a mle and a half. They extend
long distances and need technology to nmake it possible to
penetrate the thin sands.

Al so because sand production as a byproduct is a possibility, he
showed them various conpletion techniques that can prevent that
sand from comng into the wells. They add conplexity, cost and
risk.

3:18: 46 PM
CHAIR HUGEA NS asked for elaboration on water versus oi
pr oducti on.

MR. TAYLOR said in Kuparuk and Al pine, CP is producing 250,000
gross barrels of oil daily with an associated 650,000 gross
barrels of water; the ratio is approximately three to one. In
addition, CP is injecting seawater as an enhanced recovery

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 26- Oct ober 24, 2007



nmechanism so the conbined handling is close to 1 mllion
barrels of water daily. He then referenced a table showi ng the
Six projects that CP is currently dealing with; the conpany has
a large portfolio of options. Four out of the six are satellite-
type projects, and the majority dealt with heavy or viscous oil.
The projects are significant if aggregated.

3:.22:23 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked if M. Taylor was tal king about the project
nodel i ng.

MR. TAYLOR replied that he was.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked about M. Taylor’s confidence in the node
data in question.

MR. TAYLOR said the data canme from consultants who used a w de
range of possible projects, but the costs in reality mght be
hi gher and the economic results may depend on the investor’s
actions.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how what percentage of Field A was on
the North Sl ope.

3:24:58 PM

MR. TAYLOR referred to a chart that showed six different
projects of an aggregated 50,000 to 60,000 barrels a day. There
are 2 billion barrels of oil remaining in the |legacy fields, and
t he viscous and heavy oil target could range between four and 20
billion barrels. Wiile there are significant viscous and heavy
oil reserves, they represent a larger target than can be
simulated and they do rely heavily on conventional oil; the
gross m ni mum coul d cause an obstacle to investnents.

MR. TAYLOR then referenced another di agram showi ng how different

projects would |ook under different prices. Under the current
PPT, devel opnments are advancing well, he report ed.
3:28:11 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI asked if Dr. Finiza's estimtes were done
at $40-dollar stress rate.

MR. TAYLOR replied yes, and said that the calcul ations showed
t hat projects would not be economic at $40.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked for the net present val ue.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -27- Oct ober 24, 2007



MR. TAYLOR replied that he was portraying the investors’ view of
the black solid line with the zero MPV at some hurdl e discount
rate. Anything above that line would neet or exceed that hurdle
and create value; anything below it would not. He expl ained how
these projects are challenged with higher devel opnment costs and
technical reserve risk. An increase in tax has erosion effects
on investnent that could turn a project wunecononm c because
investors didn't receive deductibility.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for clarification of net present
val ue between Project 2 on the previous page and Project 5 on
the current one.

3:31:23 PM

MR. TAYLOR explained that anything below the indicated I|ine
destroys MPV  val ue and t hose above have val ue-added
characteristics.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI said that the two projects seened close
t oget her on the graph, and | ooked identical under PPT tax rates.

MR. TAYLOR responded that he would have to conpare tax effects
and lifting costs on different graphs.

CHAI R HUGGA NS commented that the graph didn't do justice to the
nunber s used.

MR. TAYLOR agreed. He said that his main point was that the
gross mninmum may have unintended consequences, and he wasn’t
sure that it captured the full reality of the situation. It may
need to be reexam ned.

3:34:12 PM

MR. M TCHELL said that transitional investnent expenditure (TIE)
credits were introduced into PPT legislation to provide
conpensation to investors who had invested under a prior tax
structure and who will invest in future years. He then gave an
exanple of how TIE credits would work on a devel opnent field and
expl ained that a conpany doesn’'t get the benefit of it wthout
continui ng i nvest nments.

3:37:49 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked if the TIE credits had a 2008 sunset date.

MR. M TCHELL replied that they have a five-year sunset period
They are on a two-for-one basis, so a double expenditure is

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 28- Oct ober 24, 2007



required over the five years. |If the sunset were in 2008, their
val ue woul d erode.

CHAIR HUGA NS said that in his opinion the TIE credits are
di sproportional or punitive and the punitive factor should be
exam ned.

MR. M TCHELL agreed. He said he would then briefly discuss CPs
position on the legislation. The bill includes an increased
| evel of transparency between the state and the industry, and CP
is supportive of that. However, a handful of areas cause them
concern including provisions on exploration confidentiality.
Some of the explorers will find these be anticonpetitive, he
sai d. Cost deductions are another concern and he suggested that
| ease expenditure deduction should be defined in statute. He
urged a full and thoughtful discussion about what the bill wants
to acconplish

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if CP wanted conti nued inclusion of
di smant| ement costs.

MR MTCHELL relied that the PPT allows for a proportionate
share of dismantlenent costs. These are necessary expenses in
the full life of the field, and CP would view dismantlenent
costs as a legitimte part of doing business on the North Sl ope.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if including dismantlenent costs
woul d encour age i nvest nent.

3:44:16 PM

MR. M TCHELL replied that those nake up just one cost conponent
that is factored into the overall econom c decision. Including
them would help slightly, but at the initial start of the field
they don’'t nake a huge inpact. He explained that such inclusions
are crucial to attracting investors to such a harsh climate.

MR. M TCHELL said that CP absolutely believes that the industry
must be aligned with the state and currently there is not enough
information to make changes in the PPT. The risk of not getting
the right solutions also exists. The third tax change is
significant, and no one wants to have to revisit the issue. The
10 percent legacy floor will have a real effect.

3:47: 36 PM

CHAIR HUGEA NS said that the presenters had pointed out
uni nt ended consequences, and that those are some things to pay
attention to. Geat Alaskans are witing the regulations for the

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 29- Oct ober 24, 2007



PPT, and that takes time. The state does owe CP answers, and it
will get them He commended the administration for recognizing
and addressing investnent decline, and said that the industry
has to bear the brunt of the good and bad.

SENATOR WAGONER said that he would like a response letter
regardi ng prior conments.

MR, TAYLOR replied that none of CP' s enployees were currently
under investigation, and the conpany’s intention is to continue
to be active in the process.

CHAIR HUGGA NS called a recess at 3:52:32 PM and reconvened the
nmeeting at 6:15:55 PM He announced that the commttee would
take public testinony.

6:16: 20 PM

BO DARRAH, President of the Brooks Range Petroleum Conpany
(BRPC), said that his conpany is the newest explorer on the
North Sl ope, and his nessage is to hold with the status quo. Hi's
conpany is dependent on outside investors; it agreed to explore
under ELF and it doesn’'t believe the proposed system wll
attract business or cause the producers to nake additional
i nvestnments. As a non-producer, BRPC don't realize any profit
now so its investnments are high risk. Its end goal is to be a
producer, so it’s looking at the bill from that perspective.
BRPC probably shares the sane view of ACES as the mjjor
producers. His opinion is that three tax increases in three
years is not the answer; the tax is good now and enough tine
hasn't elapsed to fully judge it. The state is jeopardizing its
reputation by changing it again.

6: 25: 13 PM

SENATOR STEVENS thanked M. Darrah for his confidence in the
i ndustry, and asked where BRPC s exploratory wells wll be
| ocat ed.

MR. DARRAH said that the conpany is drilling east of Newtsit
and al so north of Prudhoe Bay.

CHAIR HUGA NS said that one of the challenges the state faces is
that the average citizen only thinks of the big three producers
and | oses track of the BPRCs of the world; the conpany’s size of
exploration is the future for Al aska.

MR. DARRAH said the benefits of PPT do help start-up conpanies
but ultimately his conpany hopes to be in the big gane.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 30- Oct ober 24, 2007



6: 28: 37 PM

MARK SHARP, representing hinself, said that he testified 18
nmonth ago that PPT was flawed from the start, because the net
profits would lead to a gross overstatenent of expenses and
understatenent of profits. Cearly PPT was best for the industry
and the 24th Legislature abdicated its responsibility in passing
it. The state needs to set the policy standard and make the
i ndustry adhere to it. He favored a gross tax.

CHAIR HUGA NS said he recalled that the admnistration was
recently in Fairbanks and asked if M. Sharp attended the
nmeet i ngs.

MR. SHARP replied that he did, and said that the gross portion
of the governor’s proposed tax doesn't kick in until oil prices
reach $30 a barrel; so it appears to himthat the tax is nore
net - based than a hybri d.

6: 35: 36 PM

JERRY WALKER, representing hinself, said he was a board nenber
of the Alaska Support Industry Alliance. He said that the
legislature’s role is to recognize the inportance of fiscal
stability, and that nmeans it shouldn’'t keep changing the rules.
The | egislature should not change the PPT, but rather work to
i ncrease investnment in Al aska.

6: 37: 39 PM

RI CH SI EFERT, representing hinself, said that he agreed with M.
Sharp, and has always advocated a production tax. The state is
experiencing a peak oil crisis, and that factor will serve as a
driver to keep the price of oil high. That wll nake capita
avai l abl e, which is what the legislature is looking for; it's a
good bet to assune that the availability of profits from oil
sales will render incentives unnecessary.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said that sonme nenbers of the conmittee were
famliar with the peak oil idea, and agreed that and it is very
i nportant.

6:41: 52 PM

TOM LAKOSH, representing hinself, said he wanted to see focus on
what |essees are required to develop in the ground; there's no
correlation between tax breaks and oil a conpany hopes to
produce. There should also be focus on how the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR) and the Alaska G| and Gas Conservation
Conmi ssion (AOGCC) wll regulate hydrocarbons. He recomends

SENATE RES COW TTEE -31- Oct ober 24, 2007



setting rates of parity with the industry in Norway and to focus
on providing an infrastructure that wll help all Al aska. He
noted that the termnation of the Point Thonson |eases was a
good exanple; there shouldn't be a “scatter-gun” approach in
giving out nore noney. He also suggested the |egislature pursue
a carbon tax.

6:48:12 PM

MERRI CK PEIRCE, representing hinmself, said he's pleased the
governor had the courage to call the special session to question
how the sale of oil is taxed. Article 8 of the State
Constitution requires that the state’s oil and gas be sold such
that they return the maxi num benefit to the people; clearly that
isn’t happening now. It was frustrating to testify |ast year
because of the things that have since conme to light, and it was
frustrating that the legislature killed a bill that would have
allowed the DOR to offer conpetitive salaries to hire tax
auditors. Currently, $23.5 billion worth of the state's oi
resources are |leaving the state annually wthout anything to
show for it. Fairbanks has high property taxes and high prices

for heating oil, and the state infrastructure is failing.
Clearly Alaska is not getting a reasonable rate of return. He
said he would like the comrttee to answer the follow ng

guestions that hadn’t been addressed:

1. Where are the core conparisons that show net profit is better
for the state and devel opnent than a gross tax with sinple price
escalators and capital credits, and how solid is the data for
t hose conpari sons?

2. Ol production is declining from the North Slope, has been
declining for decades, and is continuing to decline under PPT.
According to the consultants that are working on the bill,
fifteen-year forecast levels are even lower than in prior
forecasts. Wth world conditions unfavorable to oil investnent
in other areas and prices remaining high, where is the data
showi ng Al aska is getting fair val ue?

3. Everyone knows that TAPS tariffs increased substantially
after PPT was passed. This increased big oil’s tax burden to the
state while at the sane tinme dimnishing incentive for
i ndependent oil conpanies to develop on the North Slope due to
hi gher tariffs. Does it nake sense to give away production taxes
before correcting that disincentive for independents to devel op
fields on the Sl ope?

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 32- Oct ober 24, 2007



MR. PEIRCE said he |ooked forward to hearing the comittee

di scuss how the state will diversify the econony and create
wel | -paying jobs by stopping the give-away of billions of
dollars every year by underselling and under-taxing the state’s
oil. He added that he didn’'t hear anyone standing up for Al aska

when the producers run propaganda advertisenments that the state
is actually paying for through tax deductions. The producers are
claimng that allowing billions of dollars to |leave the state to
mul ti national corporations is sonmehow good for the Al askan
econony. That’s not true and that propaganda nust be chal | enged.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if M. Peirce had attended the recent
adm nistration’s presentation on this bill up in Fairbanks. One
of its tasks was to give an overview with enphasis on why they
sel ected a net conponent versus a gross conponent for the tax
concept .

MR. PEIRCE replied that he did. He said the presentation by the
adm nistration was “didactic.” It was advanced that the issue
was very conplex and the average nenber of the public just was
able to fathom it. He share that an acquaintance in the oil
i ndustry who really cares about Alaska said if you conme up with
a conplicated schenme such as a net profit system of taxation,

the oil industry wll always have better talent — whether it be
| awyers or tax auditors — that the State of Alaska will have. It
doesn’t really matter to the oil industry if the rate is 22.5

percent or 25 percent; it would always find a way to profit from
tax laws nore than the state.

6:57: 22 PM
SENATOR GREEN questioned an explanation in previous testinony
t hat advertising was not deducti bl e.

MR. PEIRCE recalled that in part of that discussion an anmendnent
was offered on the House floor that nmade it illegal for the oi

i ndustry to deduct | obbying expenses under PPT; and that neasure
failed. He didn’t know about adverti sing.

SENATOR GREEN renenbered that both advertising and nedia aren’t
al | owabl e deducti ons.

6: 59: 01 PM

TOM MALONEY, representing hinself, described his background in
accounting and finance, and said that |ots of discussion centers
around the taxation of l|egacy fields such as Prudhoe Bay and
Kuparuk. He said that 100 percent of the capital costs for the
infrastructure were paid for by private funds. Sone fields have

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 33- Oct ober 24, 2007



becone wuneconom c, so those owners took on all the risk. New
fields will be required, and for that to happen there needs to
be nore tax relief. If the state wants to tap heavy oil, it nust
recogni ze that those fields cost nore and produce |ess than the
| egacy fields. The legislature needs to define tax rules for new
investnments. He asked the commttee to think about what can be
done to stem production decline, and said he'd |ike the existing
producers to continue to bring capital investnent to the state;
PPT woul d encour age that.

7:03: 54 PM

PAUL KENDALL, representing hinself, said he wanted to thank the
governor because AG A opened up discussion that had been
negl ected. He said he has been watching the devel opnent of the
hydrogen industry closely, and believes there is sone interest
there. Hydrogen fueling stations are being built around the
world so there should be caution in ternms of the oil pipeline.
The state should think about what it would do if the oi
conpanies decided to pull out and prepare for the worst-case
scenario. The workers like him in the oil field have little
impact or reward, and there is a small nunber of people that
reap all the benefit. He said he would prefer to see a gross
t ax.

CHAI R HUGA NS announced an at-ease at 7:14:01 PM and called the
neeting back to order at 7:20:06 PM

7:20: 07 PM

TONY TENGS, representing hinself, questioned whether everyone
who says they're representing thenselves actually is because the
oil conpanies are making a full-court press; he said he hopes
the conmttee factors in that possibility. He said he is for
simplicity and a gross tax and hoped the |egislature conmes up
with a fair deal for the state.

CHAIR HUGA NS said that it is always nice to hear fromcitizens,
and agreed that the systemisn't perfect. There being no further
business to cone before the commttee, Chair Huggi ns adjourned
the neeting at 7:26:42 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 34- Oct ober 24, 2007



